
KCLS Board Meeting   Page 1 30 January 2007 

MOTIONS APPROVED 
 
1. Motion to approve the Board Agenda 
2. Motion to approve the December 19, 2006, as amended 
3. Motion to approve Payroll expenditures 
4. Motion to approve General Fund #0010 expenditures 
5. Motion to approve Construction Bond Fund ’88 #3020 expenditures 
6. Motion to approve Capital Project Fund 2005 #3070 expenditures 
7. Motion to approve Gift Fund #6010 expenditures 
8. Motion to authorize the Director to sign the Agreement between KCLS and Local #1857 

effective upon signing and continuing through December 31, 2009.  
9. Motion to authorize the Director to sign the Agreement between KCLS and Local #1652-LM 

effective upon signing and continuing through December 31, 2009.  
10. Motion to approve a 3% general wage increase in the 2007 salary schedule effective 

February 1, 2007 for all staff in supervisory classifications identified in the Corrected 
Eligible List, including the disputed classifications.  

11. Motion to approve Resolution 2007-01 – Surplus Furniture & Equipment 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
LeRoy McCullough called the meeting to order at 5:05pm.  
 
The Board president thanked KCLS staff, the Library Director and Board members for leading 
KCLS to its current position as one of the busiest libraries in the nation. He emphasized the 
Board’s commitment to making a good thing better. He reminded attendees that public 
comments would be limited to three minutes if speaking on an individual behalf, or five 
minutes if speaking on behalf of a group or organization. 
 

 

King County Library System 
Board of Trustees Meeting 

Service Center 
5pm ♦ 30 January 2007 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
William Pringle expressed concern regarding the direct ability to contact the Board about 

decisions made at their level. He said it was his understanding that as a citizen and library user he can only 
contact the Board via email or call the administrative offices. Referencing Edmund Burke, he suggested that 
KCLS needs an ombudsman to be accessible to patrons who wish to discuss issues of priority. He acknowledged 
that the Board members cannot be expected to answer the phone seven days a week, but reiterated that patrons 
need someone to talk with. Noting that he has an adversarial relationship with administrative offices, he 
explained that an ombudsman would be a neutral observer. He also mentioned that after reading the 
Independent Cluster Evaluation, he said leadership needs to be defined and staff morale needs to be addressed. 
 
David Hackett, Chair of the Vashon Park District (VPD) Board of Commissioners (attending with two Friends of 
VPD) expressed concern with the lack of public process related to the new, expanded Vashon Library. He pointed 
out that VPD owns the property where the current library is sited, with a ground lease set to expire in 2017. To 
supplement the written materials provided, he explained that the 2004 Capital Bond measure passed 
overwhelmingly on Vashon Island at which time the Capital Plan promised a new 10,000-square-foot library on a 
new, highly visible location. He continued stating that in 2006, after eight months of negotiating with staff; a 
Memorandum of Understanding was reached with KCLS to exchange properties on Ober Park (to allow VPD to 
take over the existing library building). In November 2006, he said KCLS’ plans changed because a new library on 
a new, highly visible location was no longer a financial possibility. At this point, he said VPD became significantly 
concerned with the lack of public process, including a poorly publicized public meeting. He said that he and two 
VPD Board members met with Richard Eadie and Bill Ptacek in December to discuss the community’s interests 
and workable alternatives. He said the outcome of this meeting is not reflected in the materials given to the 
Board and attributed the poor representation to the lack of two-way communication. He said the second 

PRESENT 
 

KCLS BOARD 
Jessica Bonebright 

Judge Richard Eadie 
Lucy Krakowiak 

Judge LeRoy McCullough 
 

KCLS Staff 
Bill Ptacek 

Linda Glenicki  
Jeanne Thorsen  

Greg Smith 
Julie Wallace 

Charlene Richards  
Bruce Adams 
Nancy Smith 

Bruce Schauer  
Denise Siers 
Kay Johnson 
Jed Moffitt 

 Jennifer Wiseman 
Judy Weathers 
Bobbie Daniel 

 

GUESTS 
William Pringle 
David Hackett 

Cory Olson 
Michael Nelson 
Yoshiko Saheki 
Rick Aydelotte 

Michelle Hillyer 
Jim Bowen 

William Messer 
Margaret Nelson 

Lori & Gary Robinson 
 



KCLS Board Meeting   Page 2 30 January 2007 

proposal is flawed and is not reflective of what the community asked for. He reiterated that this is a situation 
where VPD has the lease and owns the property. He noted that if the Board expects VPD to extend lease and 
allow an expansion of the current library, KCLS needs to consider community ideas to a greater extent. He 
expressed a desire to salvage the relationship and enter into fruitful negotiations about what will happen 
regarding the replacement of the current library. He emphasized that KCLS staff must come with an open mind 
in order for that to happen. 
 
Cory Olson, President of the Black Diamond Friends of the Library who served on the Selection Jury to evaluate 
and choose a contractor/architect team to design and build the five libraries in the Design Build package, said 
the contractor/architect team had presented a plan for completing the work on the five small libraries with the 
completion of the Black Diamond Library projected in June 2007. He noted that the contractor/architect team 
has met with local groups, government, etc. (including a site visit with the Friends of the Library) and later 
revised the timeline, after which the projected completion of the Black Diamond Library was moved to 
November 2007. He expressed concern that a number of the deadlines presented in the timeline have passed, 
including presentation of the site plan to city administration, planning commission, etc. In addition, completion 
of the Black Diamond Library is now projected to be prolonged into 2008. He requested that the bond-related 
facilities information in the Dashboard be revised to include critical dates (i.e. next public meeting, 
groundbreaking, estimated completion). He explained that this would better inform the process and progress of 
projects.  
 
Michael Nelson said the library is very important for continuing education for high school students. He said it’s 
pleasant to visit the Service Center, noting that the Board is meeting in a more spacious room and that the 
speaker timer is useful. He commented that in the recent past, there were two restrooms available to patrons at 
the Boulevard Park Library. Now, however, he said the restrooms have been designated to men and women. If 
one is occupied, patrons have to wait until the appropriate one is available. He pointed out that the reading and 
study area has become much nicer and that the rearrangement of the seating area has increased its usage. 
Finally, he commented that it is important to get the libraries open more, noting that unemployed and homeless 
people in the community use the library as shelter especially during the windstorm.  
 
Yoshiko Saheki, displaying a themed t-shirt, applauded Rick Orsillo for organizing the Shoreline Teen Advisory 
Board event in which 21 Shoreline high school teens attended and spoke articulately at Best Books for Young 
Adults Session at the American Library Association (ALA) Midwinter Conference. The teens had been reading the 
new books all year in preparation. The Friends of Shoreline Library sponsored by the event. Thanks also to 
chaperones Alene Moroni, Aarene Storms; two Friends Yoshiko Saheki, Jeanne Johnson; and Rick Orsillo's wife 
Gayle. She said the effort was a great indication of the wonderful camaraderie between the staff, adding that 
the community benefits by staff working together. She emphasized that these local staff be recognized by the 
Board for going beyond the call of duty. The Board congratulated the staff involved. 
 
Rick Aydelotte explained that there is no high speed internet access in Skykomish. He said the phone company 
won’t be able to make it available until 2010. He noted that he can park in front of the library to utilize KCLS’ 
wireless. He requested that KCLS work to extend the range of the library’s wireless to the town of 80 families.  
 
Regarding the Maple Valley Library, William Messer mentioned the treacherous conditions of the parking lot and 
surrounding areas during the recent winter weather and asked why the County didn’t take care of the library. He 
also asked KCLS to protest the installation of a roundabout near the entrance of the Maple Valley Library, which 
will ruin the surrounding tree-lined areas. He explained that the community doesn’t want the roundabout, but 
the mayor does. Finally, he asked that a computer station be dedicated in every library (not just one library in 
each cluster) for downloading eBooks in the library. In addition, he briefly discussed some of the technical 
requirements KCLS can improve in the area of digital downloads. Jed Moffitt agreed to look into the options.   
 
Margaret Nelson said correct information is needed to make informed decisions. After learning of two break-ins 
at the Federal Way 320th Library last year, she reminded the Board that she had requested that KCLS install an 
alarm system. The Board asked staff to look at the number and nature of incidents that occurred at the library 
and then received a December 19, 2006 memo from Greg Smith that lacked any mention of the July 2006 theft. 
She said it made her wonder if the Board is not receiving complete reports of security issues, noting that patrons 
should not have to point out omissions like this. She thanked the Board, however, for installing security cameras 
as of December 11 to monitor the parking lots and entrances of the library. This month, she said she sent Greg 
Smith information showing that his previous statements that the City of Federal Way charges government 
buildings for false alarms are misinformed and that the City’s website should not be blamed for any incorrect 
interpretations about false alarm charges by his staff. Also, on January 24, 2007 she said she informed him that 
library staff said the security cameras have already been tampered with by unknown parties, so they were not 



KCLS Board Meeting   Page 3 30 January 2007 

recording what was going on around the library. She noted that someone serious about vandalism could just 
cover the lens or rip the cameras out before doing what they wish. Regarding a report of broken glass around 
January 17 she asked if there was another break-in attempt. She said that Greg Smith had not responded to the 
camera problem concerns or the broken glass question. She acknowledged receipt of the Federal Way Police 
Department’s “Safety and Security Inspection” sent by Bill Ptacek. She said she hopes KCLS will carry out the 
police recommendations, including putting Epoxy film on the windows and requesting extra patrols at both 
libraries. She said she would like to know if KCLS has asked about using alarms when talking to the police. 
Emphasizing her desire that there are no further criminal incidents at any of the libraries, she asked the board to 
make sure they are informed by staff of any further incidents and the measures taken to prevent them.  
 
Michele Hillyer said the draft copy of the December 19 minutes does not include all of Ann McCreery’s comments 
about the Waldron report on clustering. She said the minutes currently include only a small portion of her 
comments, including one in particular. When Ann McCreery gave her recommendations, regarding rotation of 
staff she said: “Unless you have a very good reason for keeping it, I can’t imaging retaining it.” Michele Hillyer 
said when Jennifer Wiseman was directly questioned about this comment, and why it wasn’t in the minutes, she 
stated that it was read directly from the PowerPoint and only when the presenter deviates from the text on the 
PowerPoint does she add the information into the minutes. Michele Hillyer said this comment was not part of the 
PowerPoint (Ann McCreery was on page 29 of the Power Point at that time), nor were several other comments 
she made, so she requested that the minutes be amended to include this important information. 
 
Jim Bowen said clustering, as defined by KCLS, includes a number of different attributes or characteristics: an 
organizational restructure, standard operating procedures, etc. and some rotation of staff between or among 
libraries within their Cluster. Rotation of staff has been the most divisive aspect of clustering. He asked that 
when the Board reaches the discussion of the Independent Cluster Evaluation report by Waldron and Company 
that they ask Ann McCreery to address her findings on the pros and cons of the rotation of staff.  
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
At 5:48pm, President LeRoy McCullough announced, per RCW 42.30.140(4)(b), that an executive session to 
review and discuss the proposals made in labor negotiations, would begin. The estimated duration of the 
executive session was 30 minutes. LeRoy McCullough, Richard Eadie, Lucy Krakowiak, Jessica Bonebright, 
Charlene Richards, Henry Farber and Bill Ptacek were in attendance. No action was to be taken.  
  
RETURN TO REGULAR SESSION 
   
President LeRoy McCullough reconvened the meeting in regular session at 6:11pm. 
 
APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
 
Richard Eadie moved approval of the agenda. Lucy Krakowiak seconded and the motion passed 
unanimously. 
 
APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES 
 
Lucy Krakowiak moved approval of the December 19, 2006, with the following amendment (page 8): When 
she gave her recommendations, regarding rotation of staff she said: “Unless you have a very good reason 
for keeping it, I can’t imagine retaining it.” Richard Eadie seconded and the motion passed unanimously.  
 
FINANCE REPORT 
 
Linda Glenicki reviewed current finances noting December expenditures were $7.0 million versus a monthly 
budget average of $6.8 million. Preliminary year-to-date expenditures are $74.8 million (91.2% of budget). This 
compares to December year-to-date expenditures in 2005 of $75.7 million (95.3% of the budget). Year-to-date 
growth in expenditures declined 1.2% driven primarily by the one-time payment in 2005 of about $1 million for 
the cost of the September 2004 bond election. She added that the December 2006 year-to-date expenditures are 
preliminary because invoices for goods or services received in 2006 are still arriving. KCLS will officially close the 
books on February 28, 2007. The following General Fund items were called out: 
 

♦ Staff Development: 2005 expenditures increased 34% due to the Employee Involvement (EI) Project 
♦ Communication: Expenditures are above budget due to the fact KCLS has not yet received the eRate 

reimbursements for the program year ending June 2006.  



KCLS Board Meeting   Page 4 30 January 2007 

♦ Miscellaneous: Growth over prior year was driven by an increase in ad valorem tax refunds, including a 
large refund to Qwest Corporation who successfully appealed the valuation of their corporate properties. 

♦ Reserves: Expenditures include $20,000 to Waldron & Company for the Independent Cluster Evaluation.  
 
December revenues were $1.3 million with the largest component being property taxes of $610,000, bringing 
year-to-date revenue to $80.1 million (100.8% of budget). In prior year KCLS was at 100.3% of the budget at this 
time. Investment interest finished the year at double the budget as interest rates continued to rise. Credit card 
payments in December were 26.7% of total payments, slightly below November’s rate of 28.4%, but above the 
year-to-date average rate of 23.4%.  
 
December expenditures from the 307 Capital Project Fund 2005 were $315,000 bringing year-to-date spending to 
$5.8 million (14.5% of the 2006 budget). Expenditures for design and development work were incurred at a 
number of locations, and another significant expenditure was $25,000 for an earnest money payment on KCLS’ 
intended site in Kenmore. Administrative costs of $63,000 reflect a quarterly payment to reimburse the general 
fund for the salaries and benefits costs of three employees dedicated full-time to bond projects (General Fund is 
reimbursed quarterly for payroll expenditures). December expenditures in the 302 Fund were $591,000 for pre-
construction costs for the Black Diamond Library project, as well as progress payments for the Self-Checkin 
systems at the Bellevue and Federal Way Regional libraries. 
 
PAYMENT OF BILLS 
 
Lucy Krakowiak moved approval of Payroll Expenditures in the amount of $2,101,300.86; Checks December 
1-15th Chk #: 137543-138582; 134412-134604 and December 16-31st Chk #: 138583-139650; 134605-
134788. Richard Eadie seconded and the motion passed unanimously. 
  
Jessica Bonebright moved approval of General Fund #0010 Expenditures December 2006 in the amount of 
$6,264,736.13; (Travel Advances) Chk #802, (12/5) Chk #98189-98262, (12/6) Chk #98267-98284, (12/7) 
Chk #98285-98304; 98305-98429, (12/8) Chk #98430-98512, (12/13) Chk #98517-98597, (12/14) Chk 
#98602-98703; 98704-98712, (12/19) Chk #98715-98769; 98770-98810; 98817-98827; 98828-98831, 
(12/21) Chk #98832-98965, (12/22) Chk #98976-98998; 98999-99001, (1/3) Chk #99002-99122; 99126, 
(1/4) Chk #99127. Lucy Krakowiak seconded and the motion passed unanimously. 
  
Richard Eadie moved approval of Construction Bond Fund ’88 #3020 Expenditures December 2006 in the 
amount of $591,348.20; (12/5) Chk #98263, (12/8) Chk #98513, (12/13) Chk #98598, (12/19) Chk #98811-
98812, (12/21) Chk #98966-98968, (1/3) Chk #99123-99124. Lucy Krakowiak seconded and the motion 
passed unanimously. 
 
Lucy Krakowiak moved approval of Capital Project Fund 2005 #3070 Expenditures for December 2006 in the 
amount of $252,187.30; (12/8) Chk #98514-98516, (12/13) Chk #98599-98600, (12/19) Chk #98813-98816, 
(12/21) Chk #98969-98975, (1/3) Chk #99125. Richard Eadie seconded and the motion passed unanimously. 
 
Jessica Bonebright moved approval of Gift Fund #6010 Expenditures for December 2006 in the amount of 
$660.09; (12/5) Chk #98264-98266, (12/13), Chk #98601, (12/14) Chk #98713-98714, (Voids) Chk #98266. 
Lucy Krakowiak seconded and the motion passed unanimously. 
 
COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT(S) 
 
Richard Eadie moved to authorize the Director to sign the Agreement between the King County Library 
System and the Washington State Council of County and City Employees, American Federation of State, 
County and Municipal Employees, AFL-CIO, Local #1857 effective upon signing and continuing through 
December 31, 2009. Lucy Krakowiak seconded and the motion passed unanimously. 
 
Lucy Krakowiak moved to authorize the Director to sign the Agreement between the King County Library 
System and the Washington State Council of County and City Employees, American Federation of State, 
County and Municipal Employees, AFL-CIO, Local #1652-LM effective upon signing and continuing through 
December 31, 2009. Jessica Bonebright seconded and the motion passed unanimously. 
 
Jessica Bonebright moved approval of a 3.0% general wage increase in the 2007 salary schedule effective 
February 1, 2007 for all staff in supervisory classifications identified in the Corrected Eligible List, 
including the disputed classifications, for the January 5, 2007 PERC issued Interim Certification of Council 



KCLS Board Meeting   Page 5 30 January 2007 

2 and authorize the Director to sign the attached Memorandum of Agreement, if approved by Council 2. 
Lucy Krakowiak seconded and the motion passed unanimously.  
 
RESOLUTION 2007-01 – SURPLUS FURNITURE & COMPUTER EQUIPMENT 
 
Linda Glenicki explained that this was a standard surplus resolution, which the Board is scheduled to approve on 
a quarterly basis. Richard Eadie moved approval of Resolution 2007-01. Lucy Krakowiak seconded and the 
motion passed unanimously.  
 
INDEPENDENT CLUSTER EVALUATION REPORT 
 
Mike Humphries, President of Waldron & Company introduced himself and his associate whose involvement was 
critical during the data analysis process. Ann McCreery reintroduced herself and asked if she could answer 
questions and/or clarify information from the Independent Cluster Evaluation Final Report. Richard Eadie said he 
had received and reviewed the full report (which was not available at the previous meeting). He said he 
recognized the issues and implications of the report and had no questions. Jessica Bonebright asked Ann 
McCreery to address the question raised during public comment regarding rotation. Ann McCreery said they 
found rotation has mixed benefits and costs. She said some like seeing other people in the other libraries (a 
small minority) and a number of managers felt it has potential. If it’s a goal to view KCLS as a large system, she 
said rotation helps by bringing people out of their local library to see how others do things. She emphasized that 
the forced rotation was consistently unpopular; noting that it (not the entire concept of clustering) should be 
reconsidered. Jessica Bonebright said it was her understanding that resolution regarding the rotating schedules 
was reached through Labor Management meetings. Given that the assumptions about rotation that existed at the 
time of the survey may have been altered after the Labor Management agreement was made, Richard Eadie 
asked what a reasonable timeframe would be for conducting a follow-up survey. Ann McCreery suggested waiting 
at least six months, so staff gets a sense of the professional and personal impacts of the new scheduling 
agreement. She suggested that a narrower survey would meaningfully target the issue of rotation based on the 
background and survey instruments used. Mike Humphries affirmed that the exact survey wouldn’t need to be 
repeated, but rather a subset of it. LeRoy McCullough thanked Waldron & Company for their work, noting that 
portions of the report were difficult to read, but that it covered many issues while capturing the essence of what 
people felt on all sides of the issue. Lucy Krakowiak asked staff to explain the changes made to cluster 
schedules. Following the Labor Management agreement reached in August 2006, Nancy Smith said managers 
worked to develop schedule complements for each community library and library cluster, effective January 1, 
2007, that contain no forced rotation.  
 
2005 AUDIT REPORT 
 
Linda Glenicki referred to the following three reports from the State Auditor regarding the 2005 Audit: 
Management Letter, Accountability Audit Report and Financial Statements Audit Report. She noted that the 
Auditor annually evaluates KCLS on its compliance with state law, compliance with KCLS’ policies and whether 
the published financial statements accurately represent the position of the organization. She also explained that 
the Auditor provides three levels of feedback: 1) Exit Items (lowest level); 2) Management Letter (report to the 
Board); and 3) Findings (report to public). During the audit of KCLS’ compliance with the Open Public Meetings 
Act, the Auditor determines that a special executive session was held on May 21, 2004 that was not properly 
announced or documented. Therefore, a Management Letter was issued recommending that KCLS clarify its 
policies and procedures regarding executive sessions. Linda Glenicki pointed out that since 2004, Board 
discussions on this topic have occurred and that the requirements of the Open Public Meetings Act are now 
understood. Because of this issue, the results of the Accountability Audit Report show that “in most areas the 
District complied with state laws and regulations and its own policies and procedures. However, we noted one 
issue that we communicated to District management,” that issue being the Open Public Meetings violation. In 
evaluating the District’s internal control, the audit report states that “We noted no material weaknesses 
involving internal control over financial reporting and its operation that we consider to be material weaknesses.” 
Finally, the Financial Statements audit report states: “In our opinion, the financial statements…present fairly, in 
all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities…” The Board commended 
staff for consistent excellence in financial reporting.  
 
VASHON LIBRARY SITE STUDY 
 
Kay Johnson thanked residents who made the trip from Vashon Island to attend the Board meeting. She 
introduced Robert Miller and David Cinnamon from Bohlin Cywinski Jackson, the architects hired last year to help 
KCLS and the Vashon Parks District explore a proposed exchange of locations for the two districts on Ober Park. 




